Oshkosh Public Library Board of Trustees
Agenda — May 25, 2017
Library Lower Level Meeting Room, 106 Washington Avenue

AGENDA ACTION
REQUIRED

Call to Order: 4:00 p.m.

Public Comments

Consent Agenda: YES
1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 27, 2017

2. Regular Vouchers Payable $240,840.82
3. Special Fund Vouchers Payable $2,141.72

New Business
4. Staff Guest -- Walking Tour Pilot Project: Michael NO

McArthur will demonstrate the pilot version of the library’s
audiovisual walking tour focused on the Washington
Avenue neo-classical architecture historic preservation
district. (about 20 minutes).

5. Recognition for Service to Library Board — Lurton YES
Blassingame and Bill Wingren have seen their terms of
appointment to the library board end and have declined to
be re-appointed. We present resolutions of appreciation to
both for their service to the board.

6. Library Policy Revision — We begin a long-term project of YES
examining and revising library policy with proposals to
follow City example in revising several sections of the
employee handbook. These policies pertain to bullying and
harassment, salary administration, a variety of benefits
programs, and possession of weapons.

7. 2018 library / city budget process — Review the likely NO
milestones in the upcoming budget process and explore
opportunities to enhance the library board’s participation
and the effectiveness of its advocacy.

8. Library Board Finance Committee Appointments — As YES
provided by the by-laws, President appoint three trustees
and up to two community members-at-large to Finance
Committee.

133

PAGE

135-139

140 - 141

142 - 152

153 - 154



AGENDA —cont’d

Informational Items
9. Revenues
10.  Expenditures
11.  Library Highlights
12.  Monthly Statistics
13.  Donations
14.  Personnel Changes
15.  Trust Funds for Library Excellence — 2017 Q1 Report

16. 2016 OPL Trust Fund Asset Allocation and Activity
Summary

17. 2016 OPL Trust Fund Account Activity Summary

18. 2016 OPL Trust Fund Allocations and Expenditures

19.  Letter from Wisconsin Historical Society — Library
building listed on National and State Registers of Historic
Places.

Library Director’s Report
20. RASD personnel roles — Sharon Schwartz has been
promoted to the position of Head of Reference and Adult
Services on a permanent basis. She has been serving in the
role on an Interim basis since the beginning of the year.
Michael McArthur is now the Local History and Genealogy
Reference Librarian.

21.  Report on attendance at the Wisconsin Association of
Public Libraries spring conference in Stevens Point, April
27-28.

Future Agenda Items

Trustee Reports and Comments

Closed Session
22. Library Director Performance Evaluation — 2017 Goals:
Pursuant to Section 19.85(1)(c) of the Wisconsin State
Statutes to discuss 2017 performance goals of the Library
Director.

Adjournment

Next Meeting Scheduled
June 29,2017 at 4 p.m.

134

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

155-172



MINUTES OF THE LIBRARY BOARD
Oshkosh Public Library
April 27,2017

The Regular Meeting of the Library Board of the Oshkosh Public Library was held on April 27, 2017
and was called to order at 4:05 p.m. by Board President Kim Molitor. The meeting was held in the
lower level meeting room at the Oshkosh Public Library. Present were: Kathy Bermingham, Bob
Biebel, Lurton Blassingame, Kristy Bradish, Christine Melms-Simon, Kim Molitor and Amy Sitter.
Absent were: Stan Mack, Denise Parrish, Dave Romond and Bill Wingren. Others present were: Vicki
Vandenberg, Library Assistant Director; Lisa Voss, Head of Library Development; Rebecca Srubas,
Circulation Page Supervisor; and Julie Schmude, Administrative Coordinator.

Public Comments: None

Consent Agenda Items:
Regular Meeting Minutes - of the March 30, 2017 regular meeting of the library board.
Financial Reports - March Regular Vouchers Payable $270,427.93
- March Special Funds Vouchers Payable $6,412.12

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion: Bermingham; Second: Blassingame; Vote:
Unanimous.

Motion to approve the Director’s 2017 Compensation including a move to Pay Grade M with a 2% pay
increase retroactive to January 1, 2017. Motion: Bradish; Second: Sitter; Vote: Unanimous.

Staff guest Rebecca Srubas, Circulation Page Supervisor, gave a presentation to the board about her
position.

Motion to approve the Carryover Funds Designation of Use. Motion: Sitter; Second: Blassingame;
Vote: Unanimous.

Lurton Blassingame requested that he not be reappointed to the library board when his term expires at
the end of May, 2017.

Motion to adjourn the regular meeting at 4:40 p.m. Motion: Bermingham; Second: Sitter; Vote:
Unanimous.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeff Gilderson-Duwe, Secretary

Julie Schmude — Recorder

It

135



Oshkosh Public Library
Vouchers Payable

239-1060-6102 - Reqular Pay

Salaries & Wages

239-1060-6300 - Fringe Benefits

FICA / Social Security
Wisconsin Retirement
Group Health Insurance
Group Dental Insurance
Group Life Insurance

239-1060-6401 - Contractual Services

NMT Corporation
T and L Janitorial Services

Unique Management Services, Inc.

Winnefox Library System

239-1060-6404 - Postage & Shipping

UPS
Winnefox Library System

239-1060-6424 - Maintenance Office Equipment

Oshkosh Office Systems

April 2017

239-1060-6426 - Maintenance Machinery, Equipment & Structures

Energy Control & Design, Inc
Kitz & Pfeil

Roe Nurseries, Inc.
Winnefox Library System

239-1060-6432 - Equipment Rental

Great America Financial Services

239-1060-6448 - Special Services

Advanced Disposal

239-1060-6458 - Conference & Training

Maggie Mueller
Winnefox Library System

239-1060-6471 - Electricity

Wisconsin Public Service

239-1060-6472 - Sewer Service

City Revolving Charge

239-1060-6473 - Water Service

City Revolving Charge

136

Invoices

157.654.62

11,577.94
876.96
26,350.20
1,143.34
451.03

150.00
2,958.59
939.75
200.00

13.15
227.01

3,228.35
151.88
127.00

28.28

Totals

157,654.62

40,399.47

4,248.34

240.16

45.65

3,635.51

87.66

$361.00

158.38

6,630.49

$918.56

$1,097.00



Oshkosh Public Library
Vouchers Payable
April 2017

239-1060-6474 - Gas Service
Constellation Energy Services - Natural Gas LLC

239-1060-6475 - Telephones
City Revolving Charge
Winnefox Library System

239-1060-6476 - Storm Sewer
City Revolving Charge

239-1060-6483 - Comprehensive Liability
City Revolving Charge

239-1060-6496 - Licenses and Permits
State of Wisconsin

239-1060-6505 - Office Supplies
Elm USA Inc.
Staples
Uline
Winnefox Cooperative Technical Services
Winnefox Library System

239-1060-6506 - Software
Winnefox Library System

239-1060-6509 - Computer Supplies
Winnefox Library System

239-1060-6517 - Supplies/Repair Parts
Block Iron & Supply Company, Inc.
Filters Unlimited
Kitz & Pfeil
Grainger
Winnefox Library System

239-1060-6527 - Janitorial Supplies
Pingry-Caswell
Winnefox Library Sytem

239-1060-6575 - Library Materials
Jim Anderson
Baker & Taylor
Cengage
Center Point Large Print
Family Roots
Ingram
Midwest Tape

137

Invoices

755.10

176.07
22.39

1.060.19

258.95
2,014.63
857.75
148.97
1.751.83

79.00
393.86
118.73
749.99
144.00

73.77
23.94

15.00
10616.82
888.56
275.77
21.96
513.16
215.10

Totals

755.10

$198.46

$1,060.19

$110.00

$50.00

5,032.13

599.88

24.99

1,485.58

97.71



Oshkosh Public Library
Vouchers Payable

April 2017
Invoices Totals

New York Times (pc) 717.50

Penguin Random 335.25

Quality Books 36.44

Recorded Books 1080.30

Regent Book Company 16.93

Thomson Reuters 313.34

Time-Life (pc) 99.95 15,146.08
239-1060-6576 - Promotional Materials

Winnefox Library System 610.51

Winnefox Library System 239.34 849.85
239-1060-6589 - Other Materials & Supplies

Festival Foods (pc) 7.78

Hobby Lobby (pc) 16.97

Menards (pc) 29.26 $54.01

240,840.82

138



Oshkosh Public Library
Special Fund Vouchers Payable

April 2017
Invoices

239-1060-1327 - OPL Collection Improvement Fund

NMT Corporation 746.73
239-1060-1327 - OPL Collection Improvement Fund - George Hilton

Baker & Taylor 19.60
239-1060-1327 - OPL Collection Improvement Fund - Herman Hoxtel

Baker & Taylor 19.22

Midwest Tape 24.99

Penguin Random House 30.00
239-1060-1327 - OPL Collection Improvement Fund - Genevieve Kenny

Baker & Taylor 24.74
239-1060-1327 - OPL Collection Improvement Fund - Helen Schuster

Center Point Large Print 173.76
239-1060-1327 - OPL Collection Improvement Fund - Steven Zellmer

Family Roots 8.46
239-1060-1327 - OPLProgramming Support Fund

Constant Contact (pc) (6.76)

Winnefox Library System 236.41
239-1060-1327 - OPL Memorial Fund

Amazon (pc) 175.00

Baker & Taylor 459.92

Oriental Trading (pc) 77.12

Winnefox Library System 152.53

Total

139

Totals

746.73

19.60

74.21

24.74

173.76

8.46

229.65

864.57

2141.72




OSHKOSH PUBLIC LIBRARY

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
May 25, 2017

WHEREAS, Lurton Blassingame has served on the Oshkosh Public
Library Board of Trustees since November 1, 2002 with distinction;

and

WHEREAS, during Lurton’s tenure, the Library has experienced a
remarkable period of growth and development and Lurton has often
been in the forefront with commitment and support on many of the
issues and projects; and

WHEREAS, Lurton made himself available for many meetings and
committed as much time as was needed to help realize the fine library
facility and service program the community enjoys today;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, it is the unanimous "sense of the
Board" that we express our appreciation to Lurton Blassingame for his
exemplary service to the community as a member of the Board of
Trustees of Oshkosh Public Library. The Library is better as a result
of his service.

Resolution approved unanimously by the Library Board this 25th
day of May, 2017.

Kim Molitor, President Jeff Gilderson-Duwe, Director
Oshkosh Public Library Oshkosh Public Library
Board of Trustees




OSHKOSH PUBLIC LIBRARY

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
May 25, 2017

WHEREAS, Bill Wingren has served on the Oshkosh Public Library
Board of Trustees since January 1, 2011 with distinction; and

WHEREAS, during Bill’s tenure, the Library has experienced a
remarkable period of growth and development and Bill has often been
in the forefront with commitment and support on many of the issues
and projects; and

WHEREAS, Bill made himself available for many meetings and
committed as much time as was needed to help realize the fine library
facility and service program the community enjoys today;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, it is the unanimous "sense of the
Board" that we express our appreciation to Bill Wingren for his
exemplary service to the community as a member of the Board of
Trustees of Oshkosh Public Library. The Library is better as a result
of his service.

Resolution approved unanimously by the Library Board this 25%
day of May, 2017.

Kim Molitor, President Jeff Gilderson-Duwe, Director
Oshkosh Public Library Oshkosh Public Library
Board of Trustees




Oshkosh Public Library — Proposed Employee Handbook Revisions — May 2017

105 ANTI HARASSMENT /BULLYING POLICY

The Oshkosh Public Library and the City of Oshkosh are committed to providing and
maintaining a professional work environment that maintains employee equality, dignity, and
respect. Harassment, including sexual harassment, bullying, and/or retaliation is strictly
prohibited. Harassment and bullying increases hostility, creates an offensive working
environment, adversely affects productive working relationships, and ultimately obstructs the
vision of a diverse workforce, reflective of the City itself. Employees are entitled to a work
atmosphere free from harassment.

Employees are prohibited from harassing other employees whether or not the incidents of
harassment occur on Oshkosh Public Library or City of Oshkosh premises and whether or not the
incidents occur during working hours.

Behavior that creates a hostile work environment is a serious matter and will not be tolerated.
Employees are prohibited from engaging in any conduct that could be construed as harassment,
as defined by this policy.

The City Attorney and Equal Employment Opportunity Officer of the City of Oshkosh are
resource persons for the Library Director and may be involved in harassment investigation
and/or decision-making processes at the request of the Library Director or the library staff
charged with responsibility for investigating complaints under this policy.

1. Harassment Defined

a. According to the (ERD). harassment becomes illegal when an employer, supervisor or co-
worker harasses a person because of their race, color, creed, ancestry, national origin, age
(40 and up). disability. sex, arrest or conviction record, marital status, sexual orientation or
membership in the military reserve. According to the (EEOC). it is unlawful to harass a
person (an applicant or employee) because of that person’s sex (including pregnancy),
national origin, age (40 and older), disability and/or genetic information.’

142



/)

Oshkosh Public Library — Proposed Employee Handbook Revisions — May 2017

b. Harassment may include verbal abuse, epithets, and vulgar or derogatory language, display

of offensive cartoons or materials, mimicry, lewd or offensive gestures and telling of jokes
offensive to the above protected class members. The behavior must be more than isolated
incidents or casual comuments, it involves a pattern of abusive and degrading conduct
directed against a protected class member that is sufficient to interfere with their work or

create an offensive and hostile work environment.

Harassment can include “sexual harassment™ or unwelcome sexual advances, requests for
sexual favors, and other verbal or physical harassment of a sexual nature. Harassment does
not have to be of a sexual nature however and can include offensive remarks about a person’s
sex. For example, it is illegal to harass a woman by making offensive comments about
women in general. Both victim and the harasser can be either a woman or a man, and the
victim and harasser can be the same sex. Although the law doesn’t prohibit simple teasing,
ofthand comments, or isolated incidents, harassment is illegal when it is so frequent or severe
that it creates a hostile or offensive work environment or when it results in an adverse
employment decision (such as the victim being fired or demoted). The harasser can be the
victim’s supervisor, a supervisor in another area, a co-worker, or someone who is not an
employee of the employer, such as a client or customer. Although the above refers to details
of sexual harassment, the city will use similar analysis for other forms of harassment.

Prohibition of the Possession or Display of Harassing Materials - Employees are prohibited
from possessing, displaying, disseminating, distributing, trading or sharing of any materials,
regardless of format; (e.g., electronic, paper, film, video, animated) that constitute
harassment on the basis of any characteristic protected by State, Federal or local law. This
prohibition extends to all materials which are pornographic and/or demeaning. This
includes, but is not limited to, nude, semi-nude or scantily clad images, or images of people
simulating acts or exhibit expressions which are intimate, sexual, demeaning or provocative.

Bullying Detined

a. Bullying is any gesture or written, verbal, graphic, or physical act (including

electronically transmitted acts — i.e., cyberbullying, through the use of internet. cell
phone, personal digital assistant (pda), computer, or wireless handheld device, currently
in use or later developed and used by employees) that is reasonably perceived as being
dehumanizing, intimidating, hostile, humiliating, threatening, or otherwise likely to
evoke fear of physical harm or emotional distress.

Bullying also includes forms of retaliation against individuals who report or cooperate
in an investigation under this policy. Such behaviors are considered to be bullying or
harassment whether they take place on or off Library property, or at any Library-
sponsored function.

Bullying is conduct that meets all of the following criteria:

i.  is reasonably perceived as being dehumanizing, intimidating, hostile, humiliating,
threatening, or otherwise likely to evoke fear of physical harm or emotional distress,
and;

ii. is directed at one or more employees, and;

143



Oshkosh Public Library — Proposed Employee Handbook Revisions — May 2017

iii. is conveyed through physical, verbal, technological or emotional means, and;

iv. substantially interferes with an employee’s ability to do their job.

144



Oshkosh Public Library — Proposed Employee Handbook Revisions — May 2017

3. Responsibilities

a. Employee - The employee should:

i. Make their unease and/or disapproval directly and immediately known to the
bully or harasser;

ii. Make a written record of the date, time, and nature of the incident(s) and the names
of any witnesses; and

145



Oshkosh Public Library — Proposed Employee Handbook Revisions — May 2017

iii. Report the incident to a supervisor, the Assistant Director, or the Library Director.

Employees should be aware that making a charge of harassment is a serious matter and
that doing so frivolously, recklessly, or with malicious intent is a violation of this policy
and is subject to discipline. '

Supervisors - Supervisors must deal expeditiously and fairly with allegations of bullying
or harassment whether or not there has been a written or formal complaint. Supervisors
who knowingly allow or tolerate harassment are in violation of this policy and are subject
to discipline. Supervisors must:

i. Act promptly to investigate bullying, harassment or inappropriate sexually oriented
conduct;

ii. Ensure that bullying, harassment or inappropriate sexually oriented conduct is reported
to the Assistant Director or the Library Director.

iii. Take corrective action to prevent prohibited conduct from reoccurring.

In many cases, a supervisor’s warning to an alleged bully or harasser, combined with
appropriate follow-up supervision and monitoring of the employee’s behavior may be
sufficient to prevent or stop bullying or harassment.

The Assistant Director or the Library Director must:

i. Ensure that both the individual filing the complaint (hereafter referred to as the
complainant) and the accused individual (hereafter referred to as the respondent) are
aware of the seriousness of a bullying or harassment complaint;

ii. Explain the Library bullying / harassment policy and investigation
procedures to the complainant and the respondent;

iii. Explore means of resolving the bullying or harassment complaint;

iv. Refer the complainant and/or the respondent to the City of Oshkosh Employee
Assistance Program (EAP) for counseling and referral services, if appropriate;

v. Notify the police if criminal activities are alleged; and

vi. Arrange for an investigation of the alleged harassment and the preparation of a
written report to be submitted to a decision-making panel (see below).

The City of Oshkosh EEO Officer:

i. Act as a consultant and resource person for Library administrators as they discharge
their responsibilities under this policy.

ii. Fulfill the responsibilities of the Library Director under this policy in the event that
the Library Director is alleged to have bullied or harassed other Library employees.
146



Oshkosh Public Library — Proposed Employee Handbook Revisions — May 2017

3. Complaint
All incidents of bullying or harassment or inappropriate sexually oriented conduct should be
reported as provided in the Employee Responsibilities section above. All reported incidents
will be investigated. A formal investigation into an alleged violation of this policy can be
initiated by an employee filing a written harassment complaint with the Assistant Director or
the Library Director.

Complaints should be filed as soon as possible after an incident of alleged harassment. The
supervisor, Assistant Director or Library Director will assist the complainant in completing a
bullying or harassment complaint. To ensure the prompt and thorough investigation of a
bullying or harassment complaint, the complainant should provide as much of the following
information as is possible:

a. The name, department, and position of the person or persons allegedly causing the
bullying or harassment;

b. A description of the incident(s), including the date(s), location(s), and the presence of any
witnesses;

c. The alleged effect of the incident(s) on the complainant’s position, salary, benefits,
promotional opportunities, or other terms or conditions of employment;

d. The names of other employees who might have been subject to the same or similar
bullyving or harassment;

e. The steps the complainant has taken to try to stop the bullying or harassment; and

f. Any other information the complainant believes to be relevant to the bullying or
harassment complaint.

4, Investigation - The Assistant Director or the Library Director is responsible for ensuring that
an impartial investigation begins within 10 working days after a complaint has been filed.
The Library attempts to complete investigations within 15 working days. Except in the most
unusual circumstances, investigations must be completed within 30 working days.

In most cases the Assistant Director and the Library Director will conduct the investigation.
They may consult with the City of Oshkosh EEO Officer who may be asked to participate in
the investigation. An independent outside investigator may be appointed by the Library
Director to lead the investigation if necessary to expedite the resolution of a complaint or
resolve any potential conflict of interest. In any case, two persons will conduct all interviews
with the complainant, respondent and witnesses so that information obtained during the
interviews can be corroborated.

The investigator will contact the respondent, inform him or her of the nature of the
complaint, solicit the respondent’s account of the alleged incident(s), inform the respondent
that a report will be prepared, and advise the respondent of his or her right to be represented
by legal and/or union counsel.

147



Oshkosh Public Library — Proposed Employee Handbook Revisions — May 2017

5. Report -The designated investigator will prepare a written report immediately following the
completion of the investigation. Except in the most unusual circumstances, the report must be
completed within 15 working days after the completion of the investigation. The report must

include:

a. asummary of the complaint;

b. asummary of the response by the individual charged with bullying or harassment;
c. asummary of the statements and evidence obtained during the investigation;

d. asummary of prior settlements or substantiated complaints against the respondent;

e. afinding of whether a violation of this policy occurred, evidence for the finding, and an
evaluation of the severity of the violation;

f. an appendix containing the statements of all parties to the complaint and any other
documentary evidence obtained in the course of the investigation.

6. Decision-Making Panel

The report will be delivered to members of a decision-making panel, consisting of the
Library Director, the respondent’s supervisor and the City Attorney or Library counsel. If
one of these people is involved in the complaint, the Library Director shall have the right to
appoint an individual as a replacement.

After consideration of the report, the panel may agree to one of the following courses of
action:

a. Sustain the complaint, order the bullying or harassment to stop, enforce appropriate
sanctions on the respondent, provide for the restoration of any employment benefits the
complainant lost because of the harassment and provide any other relief necessary to
remedy the situation;

b. Order further investigation, for a period not to exceed 10 working days and require a
supplementary report;

c. Dismiss the complaint, if it is found to be without merit. If the investigator finds that the
complaint was made frivolously, recklessly or with malicious intent, and if the panel
agrees, it may choose to recommend disciplinary action against the complainant; or

d. Order other corrective actions to bring about required changes in employee behavior.

Once the panel has reviewed the report and decided upon a course of action, copies will be
provided to both the complainant and the respondent. The Assistant Director or Library
Director and a member of the committee will meet with the complainant to explain the
decision. The Assistant Director or Library Director and the respondent’s supervisor and/or
department head will meet with the respondent to explain the decision and any corrective or
disciplinary action that will be taken. Copies of the investigative report will be placed in the
personnel files of any employees found to be in violation of this policy.

148



Oshkosh Public Library — Proposed Employee Handbook Revisions — May 2017

7. Monitoring Compliance - The supervisor is expected to monitor future compliance with
this policy in order to guard against any retaliation that may be aimed against the
complainant and to prevent further harassment.

8. Discipline - Employees who violate this policy may be subject to disciplinary action,
as determined by the decision-making panel.

9. Confidentiality - All inquiries, complaints and investigations are treated as confidentially
as possible. However, when the Library becomes aware of the potential of a bullying or
harassment situation, it is obligated to follow up on the circumstances, which may require
discussion of the information provided.

All information pertaining to a bullying or harassment complaint or investigation is
maintained by the library administration in secure files.

All individuals contacted in connection with a complaint will be counseled that
any information pertaining to the complaint should be held in confidence.

Although every effort will be made to keep information contained in a formal complaint
confidential, it may be necessary to reveal the identity of the complainant to the
respondent and witnesses. The library administration will take steps to ensure that the
complainant is protected from retaliation during the period of the investigation and after
its conclusion.

10. Other Available Procedures - The procedures available under this policy do not preempt
or supersede any legal procedures or remedies otherwise available to a victim of
harassment under state or federal law.

149



109

Oshkosh Public Library — Proposed Employee Handbook Revisions — May 2017

SALARY ADMINISTRATION

4. Pay System - Pay periods are bi-weekly. Hours worked during a pay period are ordinarily
paid the following Thursday Friday of the subsequent pay period.

7. Salary Adjustment

(This section approved October 25, 2012)

a.

m.

General - The salary schedule shall be reviewed annually to consider overall changes of
salaries inside the organization, the labor market and economic conditions. If a general
adjustment is given, it may be made either on a straight percentage basis, a flat
dollar amount, or a combination of the two. All annual salary adjustments under the
pay plans — whether general, individual performance-based or individual steps — shall
normally be effective January 1 or pay period #1. To be eligible for an annual salary
increase, an employee’s supervisor must have certified that they were meeting or
exceeding expectations on the previous year’s annual performance evaluation. When an
employee’s salary exceeds their existing pay range maximum the employee’s pay is
said to be “red circled”. An employee whose pay is red circled will not be eligible for
further base-accumulating pay increases until his/her salary is within the salary range
for their current position.

Market Survey Implementation Guidelines — The following implementation guidelines
will be applied to approved studies:

(1) If an employee’s current rate of pay is between a step in the new range, then the
employee will be placed at the step that provides an increase.

(ii) If an employee’s current rate of pay is between the Control Point of the new range
and the Maximum rate of the range, then no increase is required..

(1iD)If an employee’s current rate of pay is “red-circled™ and would be higher than the
Maximum rate of the new range, then the employee would continue to be “red-
circled”.

201/202 ROTH IRA /DEFERRED COMPENSATION

Under this these pregram programs, an employee may designate a portion of his/her income to
be deposited into a special investment account for use in retirement future years. The These
programm programs effers offer certain tax advantages to participants. Further information is
available through the Assistant-Direetor City Benefits Office.

150



Oshkosh Public Library — Proposed Employee Handbook Revisions — May 2017

207 DENTAL,HEALTH, & VISION INSURANCE

[f Fhe the Library shall-pay-a-=set contributes an amount per month toward the premium of the
group-health plans=; This this amount is based on eligibility and shall be set and modified from
time to time by the Library Board, advised by the Library Director. Specific benefits provided by
this plan are explained in the Master Plan Document(s) which may be obtained in the City of
Oshkosh Benefits Office. Premiums are collected one month in advance of effective coverage,
through payroll deductions.

209 INCOME CONTINUATION INSURANCE (ICI)

ICI is an income replacement plan that replaces up to seventy-five (75) percent of an employee’s
gross salary (to a maximum of $4,000 per month) if the employee is unable to work because of
non work related sickness or injury. The plan is not a guarantee of employment. The plan provides
replacement income for disabilities that are considered short term in nature, as well as those that
may last for extended periods afier employees exhaust all accrued paid leave time. The City will
pay the premium for the 180 day elimination (waiting) period. Employees may select a shorter
elimination (waiting) period of 30, 60, 90, or 120 days. If employees desire a shorter elimination
period, they are required to pay the necessary additional premium.

212 LIFE INSURANCE

1. Enrollment - Employees should enroll for group life insurance immediately after

completing-six-months-of serviee-with-the-City. Failure to do so will require the employee

to apply for life insurance through medical evidence of insurability.

215 SECTION 125-FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN

The Flexible Benefit Plan is a program that was enacted by Congress in 1978 and is open to regular
City employees. The plan allows employees to pay for certain expenses using pre-tax dollars.
Employees deduct monies from their paycheck before federal, state, Social Security and Medicare
taxes are calculated. The monies are withheld from each paycheck in equal installments and
reimbursed once an employee shows proof that the service was rendered. This plan allows three
two separate categories of expenses to be claimed up to annual maximums. The categories are:

Independent PremivmFeature; Dependent Care Reimbursement, and Medical Reimbursement.

312 WEAPONS

For the purposes of this policy, weapon shall mean without limitation because of enumeration:
any firearm, whether loaded or unloaded; any device designed as a weapon and capable of
producing death or great bodily harm; any electric weapon as defined in Sec. 941.295(4), Wis.
Stats.; any instrument which expels a missile or other object by the expansion of compressed air

151



Oshkosh Public Library — Proposed Employee Handbook Revisions — May 2017

or other gas, by spring or any other means; cross-knuckles, blackjack, billy club; any knife which
has a blade three inches or longer, or a blade which may be drawn without the necessity of
contact with the blade itself, martial arts type weapons such as, without limitation because of
enumeration, throwing stars, Tonfa, Nunchaku, fighting chains; pepper spray, mace, tear gas; or
any other device or instrumentality which, in the manner it is used or intended to be used, is
calculated or likely to produce death or great bodily harm.

Regardless of whether an employee possesses a concealed carry weapon license or is otherwise
allowed by law to possess a weapon, employees may not possess any weapon on Library or city
property or in any other location when the employee is in the course of employment. An
employee may not possess any weapon in any Library- or city-owned or leased vehicle. This
policy shall not apply to law enforcement officers or fire personnel who are required to handle
weapons in accordance with their policies related to transporting patients with weapons. This
policy shall not prohibit an employee from carrying a concealed weapon or ammunition or from
storing a weapon in the employee’s own motor vehicle, whether that vehicle is used in the course
of employment or whether the vehicle is driven or parked on Library or City property.

152



Psey
‘,—‘

——— ]

OS HKOSH
P UBLTIC
LI BRARY

106 Washington Avenue, Oshkosh, Wisconsin 54901-4985

MEMORANDUM
DATE: May 17, 2017
TO: Oshkosh Public Library Board of Trustees
FROM: Jeff Gilderson-Duwe

SUBJECT: 2018 Budget Preparation Calendar

Although the city Finance Director has not yet released a calendar for the 2018 budget
process, past years’ experience allow us to make educated estimates as to the major
milestones and deadlines. Here are my current estimates of the library budget preparation
process, placed in context with likely major milestones of the city’s calendar:

June

7?7 Library Board Finance Committee explores major challenges, proposals
and initiatives with the Library Director. The committee advises the
Library Director in developing the first draft of the 2018 library budget.

July '

01-20 Library Director and management team develop first draft of 2018 library
budget.

27 Discuss 2018 budget draft at regular library board meeting.

August

01-11 Develop detailed 2018 library operating budget; deliver to city Finance
Dept. by approximately August 11

September

Approx.. City Manager reviews proposed budgets with city department heads.

4-23

28 Detailed 2018 operating budget proposal to library board for consideration.

Sept 30 — Budget refinement / revisions

Oct 2

October

Approx.10  Preliminary budget delivered to Council

Approx Council budget workshops
16-27

“Connecting Peopleddith Information

QOshkosh Public Library (920) 236-5200 Administration (920) 236-5210 FAX (920) 236-5228 www.oshkoshpubliclibrary.org



November

7 Council budget hearing
21 Council approval of 2018 budget and 2018 — 2019 capital improvement
plan

154



OSHKOSH PUBLIC LIBRARY

STATEMENT OF REVENUE
April 2017
33% of the Year
% of REVENUE

ESTIMATED APRIL REVENUES | ANNUAL EXCESS

REVENUES | REVENUES TO DATE |EST. TOTAL|(DEFICIENCY)
Winnebago County 564,621.00 0.00 141,155.25 25.00%)]| (423,465.75)
Calumet County (Act 420 Revenue) 1,949.00 1,949.00 1,949.00 100.00% 0.00
Fond du Lac County (Act 420 Revenue) 23,990.00 23,990.00 23,990.00 100.00% 0.00
Green Lake County (Act 420 Revenue) 1,747.00 1,747.00 1,747.00 100.00% 0.00
Waushara County (Act 420 Revenue) 8,103.00 8,103.00 8,103.00 100.00% 0.00
Winnefox Library System 250,274.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%| (250,274.00)
Graphic Design Contractual Revenues 19,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% (19,000.00)
TOTAL GRANTS & AIDS 869,684.00 35,789.00 | 176,944.25 20.35%| (692,739.75)
Fines 25,000.00 2,688.02 17,725.04 70.90% (7,274.96)
Collection Service Fees - Collected in-house 7,000.00 105.00 1,379.12 19.70% (5,620.88)
Meeting Room Rental Fees 3,000.00 255.00 1,370.00 45.67% (1,630.00)
Photocopiers 3,000.00 275.37 1,129.89 37.66% (1,870.11)
Other Copies 6,000.00 988.00 5,824.09 97.07% (175.91)
TOTAL FEES & CHARGES 44,000.00 4,311.39 27,428.14 62.34% (16,571.86)
Trust Fund Revenues 3,500.00 17.70 782.25 22.35% (2,717.75)
Miscellaneous Revenues 500.00 244.04 1,209.86 241.97% 709.86
Used Book Sales 15,000.00 994.39 6,487.42 43.25% (8,512.58)
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 19,000.00 1,256.13 8,479.53 44.63% (10,520.47)
TOTAL EXPECTED REVENUES 932,684.00 4,435.02 26,854.46 2.88%| (905,829.54)
CITY OF OSHKOSH LEVY 2,660,000.00 2,660,000.00 100.00% 0.00

155




Oshkosh Public Library
Statement of Expenditures

April 2017

33% of the year
NET % OF UNEXPENDED
2017 APRIL EXPENSES ANNUAL BALANCE
Salaries, Wages, & Benefits BUDGET EXPENSES TO DATE BUDGET April 30, 2017
Salaries & Wages 1,942,100.00 157,654.62 599,083.62 30.85 1,343,016.38
FICA 147,300.00 11,577.94 43,908.13 29.81 103,391.87
Wisconsin Retirement 123,600.00 876.96 27,187.47 22.00 96,412.53
Health Insurance 351,000.00 26,350.20 103,581.97 29.51 247,418.03
Dental Insurance 16,300.00 1,143.34 4,393.80 26.96 11,906.20
Life Insurance 6,700.00 451.03 1,987.35 29.66 4,712.65
Income Continuation Insurance 4,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,300.00
Sub Total Fringe Benefits 649,200.00  40,399.47 181,058.72 27.89 468,141.28

TOTAL PAYROLL 2,591,300.00 198,054.09 780,142.34 30.11 1,811,157.66

Contractual Services 328,500.00 4,248.34 185,798.77 56.56 142,701.23
Auto Allowance 200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
Postage & Shipping 3,500.00 240.16 859.46 24.56 2,640.54
Advertising/Marketing 4,000.00 0.00 1,600.00 40.00 2,400.00
Promotional Services 4,300.00 0.00 100.00 2.33 4,200.00
Maint. Office Equipment 4,500.00 45.65 2,391.01 53.13 2,108.99
Maint. Mach, Equip, Structures 60,000.00 3,5635.51 9,356.53 15.59 50,643.47
Equipment Rental 600.00 87.66 438.30 73.05 161.70
Parking Rental 0.00 0.00 1,050.00 #DIV/0! -1,050.00
Special Services 5,100.00 361.00 1,805.00 35.39 3,295.00
Legal Professional Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0! 0.00
Conference & Training 3,500.00 158.38 814.72 23.28 2,685.28
Employee Training 500.00 0.00 379.72 75.94 120.28
Dues 1,500.00 0.00 649.00 43.27 851.00
Misc. Contractual Services 0.00 0.00 125.00 #DIV/0! -125.00
Electricity 85,000.00 6,630.49 23,791.57 27.99 61,208.43
Sewer Service 3,500.00 918.56 918.56 26.24 2,581.44
Water Service 4,000.00 1,097.00 1,097.00 27.43 2,903.00
Gas Service 31,200.00 755.10 4,051.48 12.99 27,148.52
Telephone 5,500.00 198.46 673.72 12.25 4,826.28
Storm Water Utility 2,800.00 1,060.19 1,060.19 37.86 1,739.81
Workers Compensation 3,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,600.00
Building & Contents Insurance 6,300.00 0.00 6,342.50 100.67 -42.50
Comprehensive Liability Ins 1,200.00 110.00 550.00 45.83 650.00
Boiler Insurance 1,200.00 0.00 1,600.00 133.33 -400.00
Licenses and Permits 1,200.00 50.00 50.00 417 1,150.00
Office Supplies 30,000.00 5,032.13 7,483.05 24.94 22,516.95
Software 1,000.00 599.88 623.98 62.40 376.02
Computer Supplies 300.00 24.99 102.91 34.30 197.09
Gasoline 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
Supplies/Repair Parts 12,000.00 1,485.58 4,017.94 33.48 7,982.06
Janitorial Supplies 3,500.00 97.71 97.71 2.79 3,402.29
Chemicals 500.00 0.00 810.24 162.05 -310.24
Minor Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0! 0.00
Library Materials 344,800.00 15,146.08 71,919.44 20.86 272,880.56
Promotional Materials 10,500.00 849.85 1,211.02 11.53 9,288.98
Other Materials & Supplies 1,000.00 54.01 1,621.62 162.16 -621.62
TOTAL LIBRARY BUDGET 3,556,700.00 240,840.82 1,113,532.78 31.31 2,443,167.22

156



Oshkosh Public Library Highlights
May 2017

The 2017 Create-A-Book Contest for third, fourth and fifth graders concluded on May 2 when
winners were announced at an award ceremony under the Dome. At the event, 75 students,
proud family members and teachers were treated to readings and a slideshow of the first place
winners from each grade. These books are posted on the library’s website along with a full list
of all awards.

The Children’s & Family Outreach Department has 27 sessions scheduled (at this printing) to
promote this year’s Summer Reading Program, including class visits to the library and staff visits
to schools. Signup for the program begins May 30, with the Drop In & Read Kickoff scheduled for
Tues., June 6, from 2 to 6 p.m. The library is again partnering with Go Transit to offer free bus
rides to the library for children who show their library card. Kids and teens can also earn Be Fine
Free coupons for reading 20 minutes at the library.

You could say there was care on multiple levels when community volunteers visited the library
during the April 21 Day of Caring. Volunteers, including a group from US Bank, did a spring
spruce-up of the library grounds; prepped summer reading materials, cleaned shelves and
window blinds around the building and cleaned some of the toys in the lower level.

The library participated in the community art event, 100 Days: The Creatives Respond,

on April 29. What’s left Are the Poets included poetry readings and mediated discussion under
the Dome, with 49 people attending. A community volunteer facilitated the discussion, using the
tenets of the Oshkosh Civility Project to help ensure respectful and inclusive conversation. The
event is being considered as a model for future issue-oriented community discussions at OPL.

Propel, the young professionals organization of the Oshkosh Chamber of Commerce, held its
first-ever Speaker Crawl at the library on April 28 during Young Professionals Week. More than
35 people attended the event, which featured local speakers from local businesses and
community organizations.

It was another successful year for the Lakefly Writer’s Conference, with a record 96 people
attending. According to organizer and OPL librarian Ruth Percy, practical and inspiring topics,
engaging speakers and enthusiastic participants made the event a positive and energizing
experience. Ruth will offer a full report to the board in the coming months. ‘

Winnebago County Parks staff showcased the many ways to walk, ride, roll and hike in
Winnebago County during their May 17 program, Get Moving Oshkosh & Winnebago County. .
Seventeen people attended the program, which highlighted area trails and paths, as well as
opportunities for active transportation, connecting routes to destinations and efforts to make
local roadways safer for biking and walking.

157



MONTHLY REPORT
Oshkosh Public Library

April 2017

CIRCULATION Apr 2017 | Apr2016 | % Change | YTD 2017 [ YTD 2016 [ % Change
Book-Adult 16,889 17,347 -3% 67,724 71,188 -5%
Book-Juvenile 16,746 17,134 -2% 67,724 69,874 -3%
Book-YA/Teen 1,769 1,998 -11% 6,738 7,449 -10%
CD-Adult 3,100 3,681 -16% 12,564 15,145 -17%
CD-Juvenile 339 260 30% 966 1,059 -9%
CD-Book-Adult 1,622 1,975 -18% 6,468 7,653 -15%
CD-Book-Juvenile 284 344 -17% 1,212 1,430 -15%
CD-Book-YA/Teen 51 49 4% 152 145 5%
DVD-Adult 13,645 14,486 -6% .55,665 58,728 -5%
DVD-Juvenile 4,077 4,947 -18% 15,446 19,460 -21%
Game-Adult 468 570 -18% 2,005 2,523 -21%
Game-Juvenile 167 133 26% 632 634 0%
Magazine-Adult 1,087 1,258 -14% 4,698 4,929 -5%
Magazine-Juvenile 43 35 23% 136 198 -31%
Magazine-YA/Teen 18 3 500% 71 49 45%
Other-Adult 108 114 -5% 531 642 -17%
Other-Juvenile 93 67 39% 253 258 -2%
Other-YA/Teen 5 1 400% 21 11 91%
Total Adult 36,919 39,374 -6% 149,655 160,714 -7%
Total Juvenile 21,749 22,920 -5% 86,369 92,913 -7%
Total YA/Teen 1,843 2,108 -13% 6,982 7,748 -10%
SUB TOTAL 60,511 64,402 -6% 243,006 261,375 -7%

E-Books

OverDrive E-Books 3,567 3,464 3% 14,532 14,089 3%
OverDrive Audiobooks 2,004 1,708 17% 7,552 6,994 8%
Tumblebooks 161 89 81% 749 448 67%
SUB TOTAL 5,732 5,261 9% 22,833 21,531 6%
TOTAL CIRCULATION 66,243 69,663 -5% 265,839 282,906 -6%

PHYSICAL MATERIALS Apr2017 | Apr2016 | % Change | YTD 2017 | YTD 2016 [ % Change
% AV Materials Circulated 39% 41% -4% 39% 41% -4%
% Print Materials Circulated 61% 59% 3% 61% 59% 3%
% Adult Materials Circulated 61% 61% 0% 62% 62% 0%
%Youth Materials Circulated 39% 39% 1% 38% 38% 0%
Average Circulation Per Hour 2333 237.8 -2% 230.0 240.4 -4%

MISCELLANEOUS Apr2017 | Apr2016 | % Change | YTD 2017 | YTD 2016 [ % Change
Library Facility Traffic 23,734 25,817 -8% 98,401 103,310 -5%
Average Daily Traffic 818 861 -5% 855 869 -2%
Meetings Held 91 89 2% 351 344 2%
New Card Registrations 225 211 7% 899 958 -6%
Self-check % of Checkout 48.3% 42.8% 13% 47.2% 42.5% 11%
Volunteer Hours Worked 322 624 -48% 1,278 2,589 -51%
Teacher Packs 3 10 -70% 27 27 0%

158




MONTHLY REPORT - Page 2

Oshkosh Public Library April 2017
ELECTRONIC RESOURCES Apr2017 | Apr2016 | % Change | YTD2017 | YTD 2016 [ % Change
OPL Website Sessions 22,363 24,036 -7% 88,874 96,939 -8.3%
SUBSCRIPTION DATABASE SESSIONS
Ancestry 60 105 -43% 310 321 -3.4%
EBSCO Sessions 498 326 53% 1,318 1,589 -17.1%
HeritageQuest Sessions 114 82 39% 336 281 19.6%
Mango Languages 6 17 -65% 51 84 -39.3%
Mitchell Auto Repair 3 18 -83% 29 38 -23.7%
NewspaperARCHIVE 522 505 3% 1,739 1,980 -12.2%
Oshkosh Northwestern 54 49 10% 218 181 20.4%
RefUSA 108 99 9% 449 320 40.3%
SUB-TOTAL 1,365 1,201 4,450 4,794 -7.2%
LOCAL DATABASE SESSIONS .
1957 Address Change 53 91 -42% 195 244 -20.1%
City Directories 160 211 -24% 638 673 -5.2%
Digital Collections 388 354 10% 1,264 1,241 1.9%
Local History Books 61 131 -53% 207 350 -40.9%
Oshkosh Facts, Firsts, and FAQ 2 12 -83% 34 29 17.2%
Oshkosh Newspaper Index 12 11 9% 34 45 -24.4%
Oshkosh Vital Records Index 644 650 -1% 2,717 2,609 4.1%
Riverside Cemetery Index 41 43 -5% 179 153 17.0%
UWNDC - Atlases & Histories 15 64 -77% 87 221 -60.6%
SUB-TOTAL 1,376 1,567 5,355 5,565 -3.8%
TOTAL ELECTRONIC RESOURCE SESSIONS 25,104 26,804 -6% 98,679 107,298 -8.0%
QUESTIONS ANSWERED Apr2017 | Apr2016 | % Change | YTD 2017 [ YTD 2016 [ % Change
Adult Department
Reference 1,419 13,316 -89% 20,959 54,750 -62%
Youth Department
Reference 365 768 -52% 1,985 3,149 -37%
TOTAL QUESTIONS ANSWERED 1,784 14,084 -87% 22,944 57,899 -60%
PROGRAMS Apr2017 | Apr2016 | % Change | YTD 2017 [ YTD 2016 [ % Change
Programs Given
Adult 20 10 100% 64 30 113%
Teen 4 6 -33% 33 20 65%
Youth 35 25 40% 126 133 -5%
Roving Reader 20 8 150% 53 31 71%
TOTAL 79 49 61% 276 214 29%
Program Attendance
Adult 264 147 80% 691 397 74%
Teen 22 29 -24% 177 109 62%
Youth 902 838 8% 3,777 4,168 -9%
TOTAL 1188 1014 17% 4,491 4,674 -4%
PROGRAMS DATE
Adult
Yoga for adults 4/1/2017
Bird Watching for Everyone (last month theme) 4/2/2017
World War | 4/4/2017
Knight Moves Chess Club 4/5/2017
Financial Literacy @OPL (theme) 4/6/2017
Edmund Fitzgerald (WHSAS) 159 4/6/2017
Tech Time 4/6/2017




MONTHLY REPORT - Page 3
Oshkosh Public Library

PROGRAMS
Adult (cont'd)

Poet Laureate Karla Hudson
Genealogical Society

5 Secrets to Starting a Business (Theme)
Movie Matinee

Navigating College Financial Aid (theme)

Knight Moves Chess Club

Adult DIY Sting Art

Financial Literacy @OPL (theme)

Knight Moves Chess Club

Passive Programs (chess, puzzle, coloring)

Teen
World War |
Teen Book Club
Movie Matinee

Fantastic Beasts Viewing Party
Teen DIY Earth Day Bags

Youth

Yoga for Kids

Bird Watching for Everyone (last month theme)
Read to a Dog
Family Storytimes (2 sessions)
High Hopes
High Hopes (2 sessions)
WonderlLab 4:30
WonderlLab 6:30
Family Storytime
Beginner's Minecraft
Jan Brett The Umbrella
Artfest Reception
Family Storytimes (2 sessions)
Read to a Dog
Rosendale Primary School
Tweens Create: Slime
High Hopes
Kids Are'Us In-Home Family Daycare
Helping Hands Day Care
High Hopes (2 sessions)
Fired Up! A MC Workshop
Wonderlab Volcanoes (2 sessions)
Wee Wisdom Day Care - 6 classes
Miller Family Day Care
Jan Brett The Umbrella Storytime
UWO Children's Center Family Day
Read to a Dog
Arts for Kids (2 classes - 4-5 year olds)
Arts for Kids (4 classes - 3 year olds)
Financial Treasure Hunt
Brick by Brick
Financial Treasure Hunt
Jeff McMullen 10 am

160

4/10/2017
4/13/2017
4/13/2017
4/17/2017
4/18/2017
4/19/2017
4/25/2017
4/26/2017
4/26/2017
4/30/2017

4/4/2017
4/7/2017
4/17/2017
4/19/2017
4/21/2017

4/1/2017
4/2/2017
4/3/2017
4/3/2017
4/4/2017
4/5/2017
4/5/2017
4/5/2017
4/6/2017
4/6/2017
4/8/2017
4/9/2017
4/10/2017
4/10/2017
4/10/2017
4/11/2017
4/11/2017
4/11/2017
4/11/2017
4/12/2017
4/12/2017
4/12/2017
4/12/2017
4/12/2017
4/13/2017
4/13/2017
4/17/2017
4/18/2017
4/18/2017
4/19/2017
4/19/2017
4/19/2017
4/20/2017

April 2017



MONTHLY REPORT - Page 4
Oshkosh Public Library

PROGRAMS

Youth Cont'd
Jeff McMullen 6 pm
Financial Treasure Hunt
Miller Family Day Care
Davis Child Care Center (3 classes)
Behind the Scenes Library Tour
Passive Programs (chess, puzzle, coloring)
Money Interactive Literacy Display

161

4/20/2017
4/22/2017
4/26/2017
4/26/2017
4/27/2017
4/30/2017
4/1/17-4/30/17

April 2017



=
e

OSHKSH
PUBLTIC
LI BRARY

106 Washington Avenue, Oshkosh, Wisconsin 54901-4985

MEMO

TO: Jeff Gilderson-Duwe
FROM: Libby Terrell
DATE: May 17, 2017

SUBJECT: April 2017 Donations

During the month of April 2017, the library received $559.91 in donations.

162



106 Washington Avenue, Oshkosh, Wisconsin 54901-4985

MEMORANDUM
To: Jeff Gilderson-Duwe
From: Libby Terrell
Date: May 17, 2017
Re: April 2017 Personnel Changes

There were no personnel changes in April to report.

“Connecting Peo]fé%with Information”

Oshkosh Public Library (920) 236-5200 Administration (920) 236-5210 FAX (920) 236-5228 www.oshkoshpubliclibrary.org



LT0Z/8/S

¥8°0ES'T S | ¥8°0EST s|Trotz'str  $|ITOTC'ET S| €STO6ZT s|est06'CT S| LvETST S | LY'ETST $|LL789T $|LLz89T S
¥8°0S $|6Ev $ | oL8ey s | e6°LE S | sv'sey S| voze S| tes s|tTeL S| £8SS s|18v S
(¥s°1) $ |(99°0) S |(ee-€T) $ |(89°S) S |(o0°€T) $ |{rss) $ |(vs2) $ |(8o1) S |(oL'1) S |(eL0) S
= S - S % S - S & S
- L - S - S - S - $
(vs'T) $ [(99°0) S |(eee) $ |(899) $ |(ooeT) S |(rss) S |(vs2) s |(8o1) $ |(ozT) S |(ec0) $
- $ - S - $ = $ - S
8€'ZS $|sos $ | €o'zsy s | 19 S| Srvy s|8szy s | 1098 s|678 Y WAYAS S| ess $
% S| - sl - S| - S| - S| - s - S| - sl - S| - $
6LE S| se€ S| vLze $| 682 $|861E $ | og8e S| veo $|zss S WA%4 $|69€ $
200 $|zo0 s|e10 $|610 s|ero s|eto $ | v00 $ | vo0 $|eoo $|zo0 $
LS8V s |89t s|orety s|srvt $ | 8z'60v $|60vT $|eLeL $|eLe S| 8c€s s|zet $
- S| - S| - Sy - S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - $
00°08v'T S | Sv'9zs'T S|IWILL'TT S| 8TLT'ST  $|soevt S| 6vv98ZT  $| 000EY'T $ | 92905z $ | 069291 $|962£9'T $
9leq 03 £T0T yorep aleq 03 LT0T yosepy 2)1eQ 03 LT0¢ yosep 2)eg 03 LT0¢ Yasep 2)eq 03 LT0¢ yasew
uosyoer |9IX0H jerads |j uoiiH plemauanip Ryuy
BBTC6'LET  § | 88'TC6'LET  § | LLOLE'TVT S| LL'9LE'TvT S| LvBISOBE S | Lv'6IS08E S | 60'TSOEr0'T & | 60TSO'Ev0T $ | 82°66SZv0'T $ | 87'66SZVO'T $
TTSLS'Y $ | €6's6€ $ | LT6¥08 $ | 84569 S| wzeoct S| ¥ET60T S| ¥6'859'vE S| 66'S66'C S| rSEL9veE S| ¥6°266C S
(S6°8€T) s |(zz'6s) S [(zzvve) $ |(ov0T) $ |(8€°€8€) S [(6€°€91) $ [(¥8'TS0T) s |(vT'syy) s [(6£°050T) S |(69°Lvv) S
- S 5 $ - S = S - $
g S - $ & S - S = $
(s6°8€T) $ |(zz6s) S (LT vwe) $ |{0v0T) $ |(8€-€8g) $ |(6€°€91) $ ((¥8'TS0'T)  $ |(vT8py) $ |(6£°050°T) S |{69° L) $
- $ - $ - S = S - $
LTYTL'Y $ | ST'SSY S | vre6T’s S| S8'66L $ | $8°S00°€T S| eLsst't s|8LotL'se  $|ETvprE S| EEVL9'sE S| E9°0vY'E S
- sl - | - S| - sl = sl - S| - S| - S| - S S
08'TYE $ | sv'zoe $ | 94009 $ | 95°1€S $ | Zoeve S| €sve8 $ | 18985 $ | s8882'C S| 6Tv85T S| ¥S$982° S
00 s$]002 S| 15€ $|15€ $|tss $|tss s|trst s|trst slorst $|orst S
LEOLE'Y $ | £9°0sT S| LT689°L S | 8Lv9t s | ze'Lso'zT $ | 69°sTy $|9880T'€EE S| LTOVT'T S| O'SLO'EE  $ | 66'8ET'T S
= S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - $
99'OVE'EET  $ | SE'STS'LET  $ | 09'LeE'vEr  $|66'089'Tv ¢ | 00168298 ¢ | eTzzvere  $ | ST266'800'T & 0T'SS9'0V0'T $ | ¥L'SL6°L00T $ | VE'909'6E0'T $
21eQ 03 LT0Z Yase 2)eQ 03 LT0T yorepy 9leq 03 L10Z Yasepy 21eqQ 03 L102 Yorep 21eQ 03 L10¢ Yyasey
Hoddngs SuiwwesSoug A3ojouyday wHoddns 73 Juawdojanag Ateign juawanoadwi Ajljioey wawanoidwi uoidajj0)

Hoday TD LT0Z spund 1sni1 43v0 - Ateaqri a1qnd ysodyyso

ZL0Z 1O

aduejeg pung 3uipuz
aduejeg pung o3} saduey) 31°N

S3583123(Q @due|eg pund [el0L
sasuadx3 Jayio
sasuadx3 weisoid
5994 jueg/aAnelisiuiwpy
3WO0DU| JO SIajsuel]
2ouejeg pung o} saseasdaq

S3SB3IIU| dUEjRg pung |[Bl0)
ledidund 03 siaysuel)
aWOJU| JUBWIISAAUY
$9s507/suie pazijeay
S95507/5uUlen pazijeasun
suonnquuo)

aduejeg pund 03 suolIppy

@duejeg pung Suiuado

SpuN4 uoi3}|o) paLISAY

<+
O

—
2duejeg pung Suipuz
3duejeg pung o3 saduey) 319N

S9s5e3423(Q ddUejeg puny |e30)
sasuadx3 Jay3o
sasuadx3 weidoid
$934 jueg/anieaIsiuiwpy
3Wodu| JO SJajsuel
?duejeg pung 03 saseatdaq

S3SE3JOU] BduejRg puny |BJOL
|edidulig 03 siajsuel )
BWOdU| JUBWISAAU|
$955017/5UleD pazijeay
$95507/5ulen pazijealun
suonngLIu0)

ajuejeg pun4 03 suolIppy

@suejeg pund Suiuadg

9dud|[32x3 Aeiqi] 104 spung



LT0Z/8/S

€T'ZEE'E8 S| erTzeees S| l0TevL S| LoTev'L S
8€'£9L'T $ | ozege $ | Lrave $|zete $
(867€8) S |(8£°s€) $ [(eve) S |(6T€) S
- $ - $
4 $ - $
(86°€8) $ |(8¢:sg) S (v L) $ |(61°€) S
- $ : $
9€'TS8'T $ | 86vLz $ | v6esz $|1sve $
3 S| - S| - S| - $
$5'90 $|ocLzsr $| st $|8z9t $
1T s|tTT $|tT0 s|tro $
09'€Y9'T $| 1016 $ | ersez $|zrs $
8 sl - S| - S| - $
SLY9S'08  $|€6ze0'E8 S| 09WLTL S| SL66EL S
21eQ 03 LT0Z Yyaiew 9jeQg 03 102 Yyaren
SENT[E=Y4 1981m3s
9T'SST'68T | 9T'SST'68T S | 92°98% $ [ 9z 98y $ | €9798€0T S|€998€'0r S| S8vLES S| s8vLEs $ | eszso't $ | €8'zso'e 3
11879 $ | TO'EVS $|8r9r Slert $ | €6'vPE $ | 1862 $ | vetTe $| 169z $|zrss s|eoe $
(€9°061) S |(ez18) S |(8v°0) $ |{oz0) $ |(8vot) S [(avy) S |(sv'6) S |(e0v) S |(992) S |(eTT) S
% S - $ ® $ - $ - S
- S - S - $ - S : S
(€9°06T) S |(zz'18) S [(8v°0) $ |(oz-0) $ |(8vot) $ [(ovy) S |(sv6) S |(e0v) $ |(992) S |(eTT) S
- S - $ - S - S - S
YE'TLY'9 $ | szveo $ | 999t $|zot $ | Trsse S| Lzve S | 6L0ZE $ | v6'0g $|8L06 S EA: S
= sl - S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - $
¥8'89% S| 8Ty s|tzT s|eot S|sLst $|8Lze $ | vzee $|9s0z $|8s9 $|z8s S
vLT s|vee $| 100 $| 100 $|sto $|sto s |vro S| vTo $ | voo $ | voo S
9£°000'9 $ | s9'90z $ | vpsT $ | ¥S0 $ | 15628 S| veTT S| et $ | vzoor $|otvs $|osz S
- S| - S| - s - S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - S
SV'E/8'78T $ | ST'ZT988T S | 85°0Lp $ | ve'ssy $ | oz'TvO'0T $|e89se’or  $|15°€90'6 S | v6'LYES $ | Tev9se $ | oz'sva‘z S
231eQ 03 £T02 Yyaew 21eQ 03 £T0¢ Yyaze 9leQ 03 LT0¢ yasey 21eQ 03 £10¢ Yarey 21eQ 03 £T0T yaue
H '8 I “193snyds Vv 8 4 ‘uyeloy N ‘udssnwissey Auuay THE)]

Hoday TO LT0T SPUN4 Isni) 4V0 - Ateaqr] o1jgnd ysoyyso

ZL02Z LO

ajuejeg pung Sujpuy
asjuejeg pung o3 saduey) JaN

Saseada dduejeqg puny |ejol
sasuadx3 Jay30
sasuadx3 weigoid
$994 Queg/aAijeaisiuiwpy
3wWwodu| Jo siajsuel)
ajue|jeg pung 03 saseaidaq

S3s5ea.0U] ddUE|eg pund |e30L
|ediduLd 03 s13jsuel)
2WOJU| JUBWIISIAU|
$98507/suleD pazijeay
$85507/suleD pazijeasun
suoINQUIU0)

due|jeg pung 03 suollippy

@iue|eg pung Suiuadg

spung uon?3||0) _uwﬁ_:mupw,.
O

—

aouejeg pung Suipu3
asuejeg pung o3 saduey) 19N

S3s5ealda(Q Iduejeg puny |ejol
sasuadx3 Jay30
sasuadx3 weidold
S84 jueg/aAneasiuIwpY
3WO0dU| JO Siajsues)
3duejeg pung 0} sasealdag

S9seaJdu| due|jeg pund |e3oL
Jedidulig 03 s1asuR]
SWO0dU| JUBWISAAU|
$35507/5UleD pazieay
§35507/suleo pazijealun
suoingLIu0)

3juejeg pung o3 suoIppy

asuejeg pung Suiuadp

SpUNJ UO1I3|0) PAIILISIY



LT0Z/8/S

TV'OTE'BLL'E § | TYOTE'6LL'E S | E6'TVL'CEY S | E6'TVTTEY S | 6V'890°LV8'C S | 6V'890'LV8'C &
78'€88'80T ¢ | ZS'ETY'6 S|8rvSEvT S| vsove'T S| vE6TSY6 S| 86'TLTS $
(¥8'¥0E‘E) S |(tTgov't) ¢ |(T9rsew) $ |(09°s81) S |(€2'698°2) S |(tszee'T) 3
5 S| - S| - S| - s| - s| - S
- S| - S| - S| - S| - sl - $
(¥8'v0E'E) S |(t1°80¥'T) S |(T9°sEY) $ |(09°s81) S |(€2'6982) S |(ts'zee’T) S
- sl - g = S| - S| - S| - S
99'88T°CIT  $|€6'TZ80T  $|6006LYT  $ | vvrozy'T $|24586€E°L6 S| 6YS6EG $
e S| - S| - S| - S| - S| - S
86°LTT'8 S| veT6TL s | orTL0T S | 86°LY6 $ | 85'950°L S| 96°€vz’e S
05'LY sloswwy . $|clT9 $ | Lzo s|erty s|ecty $
8T'ETOVOT  $ | 6V°Z8SE S|eretL'sr S| erTLy $|9L00€06 $|OEOTTE $
- S| - g| = S| - $| - sl - $
09°'9Zv'0LT'E $ | 09°'968'69C°E $ | SV'£88LTy  $ | 60°TO0'TEY  § | ST'6ES'ZSLT § | TS'S68'8E8'T ¢
21eQ 03 £TOT Yo 2}eq 03 £10Z yarew 21eQ 03 £102 Yyarew
spund ||y spuny pajpuIsay Iy spung papusaiun Iy
68'TIT'ES $|68TIT'ES  $|TTT9ETZ  $|TCT9ETZ  $[890Z0€C S | 890z0€z S
TUL9LT s|sLest s | ov60L s|eet9 S| osv9L $ 18099 S
(€9°€S) $ |(s8'¢7) S |(zs'Ta) $ |(LT6) $ |(oz'e) S |(68°6) S
- S # $ - $
- S - $ - $
(€9°€S) s |(s8'ze) S |(esTe) s |(zT6) s |(oz'€2) S |(68'6) $
- $ - $ - $
SL078'T $ | 09sLT $ | z6°0gL $|osoL $|ocese $|L6se $
- S| - S| - S| - S| - Ol $
68'TET $|ocatt $1s6°2S $ | s8ap $ | 908 $ | 6v°0S $
LL0 s|eto S| 1€0 s |10 $|€go0 $|ego $
60'889'T S| €8s $199°2L9 $ | veee $ | 1e08L $|stse $
- s - S| - S| - S| - S| - S
LLYYY'TS $|vI'6S0'ES S| T8'IS9'07  $|88'66r'TC S |8T9sc'zz $|o09vsezz  §
21eQ 03 £10¢ Yorep 91eQ 03 £T0T yaiew 23eQ 03 £LT0¢ TRXE]
S|OYdIN Jeujeiy ISnILAY

Hoday TD LT0Z SPuNd 1sniL 42v0 - Ateiqri a1jgnd ysoyyso

LL02 LD

ajuejeg pung Suipu3
aduejeg pund 03 saduey) 19N

S9sealdaq aduejeg pung [e}ol
sasuadx3 Jaui0
sasuadx3j weidoid
S834 jueg/sAneasIuIWpY
SW0dU| JO SI3ySuel]
@juejeg pung 03 sasealdaq

$95EB3IOU| 3dUE|Rg pUny |RJ0L
|edidulid 03 s13ySURI|
3WO0dU| JUBWISIAU]
$35507/sulen pazijeay
$35507/suleg pazijeslun
suolNgUIU0)

@duejeg puny 03 suoNIppy

acuejeg pung Suiuadp

sjejol ﬂWumU__Omr_@
O
—

asue|jeg pung Suipu3
ajuejeg pung 03 saSuey) 1aN

S3s5eaJ9(Q dduUkjeg puny [BIOL
sasuadx3 Jayio
sasuadxj weidoid
S934 jueg/annensiuiwpy
3WO0DU| JO SI3jsuel]
due|eg pund 03 sasealdsqg

sasealou] asuejeg pung |e3o0)
jedidulid 03 SJasuURI)
3WOdU| JUBWIISAAU|
$35507/SuUleD pazijeay
$95507/SUleD pazijeaiun
suoinquUuo)

aduejeg pung o3} SUOCIPPY

aouejeg pung Sujuadp

spung pajdusay Jayl0



8Z¥'v0L'Yy

vaz'zze

€28'lse

LEY'0L
6C.L'GS-

G968zl

9ez'eL
€06°L€£8'¢

9L02

SWOdU| panJody Yiim anje jaxJepy Buipug
sbujuieg |ejo |

$9SSs07/sulen)

awloou| pauseq
SMO|{ 18N

S|eMEIPYIA
suonnquuo)

SWO0dU| panIody YIM anjeA jaxley Buluuibeg

ysed %cl

Arewwng A31A39Y Junoosoy

1o0d
ddVO %L.L.

spuog

%09°0 s°nl

%Ll

9L0Z/L€/Z) J0 se uonisodwo) oljoyi0d

9102 - 110day puny 3sniy, Arexqry oriqng ysoqysQ

AdV Y d1I1
21 14dnd

167



96'2Z.'%0L'Y $

90°'222'vee

$ e0'ez8’'lse

$ obiev'ol $ (66'822'SS) (8v'596'821) 6V'9€Z'eL $ 60'€06'2€8'C $ STv1iol
4JV0 1 pun4 Juawano.idui| uoi3d3]j0) T1dO Y1 JO punj-gng
E'v09'6. $ Ze£'650'v $ G/'6£9'C $ S6LY'L $ (z5728%'L) (25°z8v'L) = $ 6922022 $ . s9jdoad Supjeads uewan 1oy sjerssjew AJojeauas oy pasn aq 03,
‘[ UBAS)S ‘Jawijez
68'8€8've $ svove $ s8pove $ ot $ = - - $ Ly'sev've $ W"'$%00q 0 3seyaind ayy 1oy Aseuqy 211qnd sy Jo asn 9jos ay3 oy,
3 ajuanbiey ‘Jswijpz
4DV0 1€ pun4 Juswano.idw) uoiId3||0) 1d0 Y1 JO punj-qns
09'vLL'L $ 6lL29e $ 86'9eC $ iz'set $ ceoey (89°st) 0ozsy $ 60'9.€'9 $ S|elsajew s,ualpiiyd
|eLIOWSN Y Wel|jiMm “1abiays
WSHed ayy 01 7/t ‘Areigri sy 03 /1
Zr'8l9'vle ¢ £0982'cs $ S8'v1L0'L9 $ 8LLL2'9 $ - - = $ 6£26E'L0e $ Asesqy oygnd ay3 jo sueuajutew pue 1oddns ays ui And ayy Aq pasn
3sni) syied g Aeiqp - eyne ‘Jequyuels
40V0 1e pund Juawaaoidwi uoiI3|0) 14O Y3 JO puny-gns
1SNJ] |eUOWS 14O 4O Med
18'GLG'S.L ¢ HE0SL'6 $ €0'/26's $ leeege'e $ (Lg'yov'Ll) (18'vov'LL) - $ 820e8'2lL $ $300q olpne pue julid a8.e| 40 aseyaind
pun4 uajay ‘48)snysg
18°289'8 $ 8865y $ 09y $ 828 $ (90¢) (90°¢) - $ 66'622'8 $ 12d5ua1343. 40 $500q Sutie|naid ‘ade} uo syo00q Sune|ndap jo aseyand-,
Jsnui] euuy g yuelq ‘uyefoy
yovee'ee $ g8'Llz'e $ 28'v60'C $ €0'2lL $ (L0'988) (20°988) - $ 98'8v6'Le $ w'S|eli31ew pue sjooq ASojeauad Joy pasn aq 0y,
jsni) Aueiqi -3 |aqely ‘uassnwisey
£8°055'e€T  $ 6€/82°1L $ 28'659'2 $ L5y ¢ (es'128'?) (es'v80'e) 00€9z ¢ /l6v8S'veT  $ 32U3][22X3 Ale1qr 10§ Spun4 1SN SIV0 0 WegD
pund ABojouyoay Aeiqi alignd ysonuse
ov'zle'sgk ¢ 69°1£9'9 $ 1988Z'v $ 8oeve'e $ (e1112'2) (er-9e2'2) 00°s2s $ v8'Lss'oet $ 92U3)[22x3 Aleiqry J0j spund IsnuL 4IVO 4O Led
pung Buiwweiboid Aieiqr a1jgnd ysoyyso
9Z'vL8'066 $ /8'692'0S $ GL'066'CE $ zLell'lL $ (evGe6'L2) (ev'se0'82) 00°00} $ 28'6.6',96 $ 90U3)|93x3 Aleaqr] Joy spuny IsniL 4IV0 40 Med
pung juswaaoidwi Ajjioe4 Aieiqi algnd ysoyyso
00°268'.98 & 6'862'LL $ 99'6es'LL $ 8zT'€Le'9 $ 95c0l'0l (Lz'eeo'el) LL'Gee'¥C $ 06'G6E'6EE $ 92U9|[29x3 AJeuqr] 4oy spund 3snuL 4IVO 4O Wed
pung poddns @ Juswdojaaaq Ateiqir a1jgnd Yysoyyso
/8°100'200'L $ #0°822'0S $ ezele'ce $ 18%6L'2L ¢ (8p06L'El) (8¥°282'vL) 00°L¥6 $ 1€190'596 $ 92U3|[29x3 AJeiqr] 10y spund IsnuL 4IVO JO Led
pund juawaaoldw uoldsjjod Aseiqi algnd Yysoyyso
2€20.'69 $ ¥89¥0'c $ 2 $ ¥89v0'e $ €6°/290'¢ (61°€85'2P) TL'059'Sy $  G6°28G'F9 $ syi3
|EIIOWSW pUB SUOIjBUOP ‘SWa)t 350| J0} pied SaNUIA3I pjoy 03 pasn pun4
ISNJ jJeOWI 140 4O Med
pund jeroway Aseiqi o1gnd ysojyso
40VO 3e puny Adojouydat 140 aY3 Jo puny-qns
W "USOYYSO J0 Ajunwwiod ay3 03 sutesad 1 se Ajjeradsa
LLYYY'LS $ S0¢6S'T $ 26'689'L $ 8’906 $ (op'eee) (ov'eee) = $ ziL'ogl'sy $ ‘uoniewnojut |e3i3ip 3|qe|iene axew pue 3J03s 499]|03,
3sniy Aieiqr 1eybi@ *A uyor ‘sjoysiN
40V0 1e puny ulwwesdoud 10 3y1 Jo puny-gns
18°169'02 $ LS0v0'L $ 99929 $ 16'€9¢ $ (eg'eel) (egeel) - $ Losvl'el $ 140 18 Sulwwe.doud s,uasp|iy) Loddns o)
jsni| weisboud s,ualppyo Aiepy ‘aeujep
aouejeg sBujuiez jejo $9SS07)/Sule9 awodu| pauley SMO|4 19N S|emMeIpyjiM  suonnquiuon aouejeg SUOIOLIISaY @ pund Jo aweN
pung 9loz 9oz 9loe 9loz 9l0C 1714 pung
Buipuz Bujuuibag
7 9%e4 Asewwing AjandY Junoddy pung isnil 1do 9102

L102/61/5



16'€90'6 $ 29'6Sh

4JV0 3e punyj Juswanouduwi uoi3d3||0) 1d0 dY3 JO puny-gns
68'G62 $ €651 $ (s1'601) $ (s1'60L) $ - $ v0'LLL'8 $ w's91yde.goiq pue ‘ade} uo syooq Sune|naup yo aseyaund-,,
ISnu] g aAsIAsURY) ‘Auuayy

cLy8r'e $ 8ceet

40V0 38 puny Juawaacsdwy UoN3||09 1dO Y3 JO puny-gng
20°€8 $ Lzsy $ (66'LbL) $ (66°LYL) $ - $ vel6Y'T $ 9dueuy jeuosiad 1o Jjedal awoy ‘s3JIGOWOINE ‘13}I0A MAN 3U} UO S300g

iSnd| jelowaly Aseaqr 3 weyiim 2 *q usajig ‘ysiey

oo'osy'L $ L5V.

40Vv0 1e pung EuEw>o.aEp U01393]|0D 14O @Y} JO puny-qns
414 $ 809z $ (196) $ (L96) $ = $ vOSLY'L $ S|euajeuw s,uap|iyd

|eLIOWay SpnIUas) ‘uosyoer

609992k $ 1L0TY9

40VO0 1e pung Juawanoiduw| uoiI3||0) 1dO Y3 4O pUns-qng
8C6LY $ elreee $ 16819 $ (6t'vie) $ ooees ¢ LSSOv'LL $ W "@IINISS 9NIssed adey [euoneanpa

3Sni| [eowsy Ateiqy * UeULIBH ‘|91XOH

00°Z0¥'el ¢ €£'629

40V0 1e pund Juswanoidw| uoI||0) 14O 3Y3 JO puny-gns
15’60 $ z8'6le $ (59°252) $ (g9°262) $ - $ zeseo'st $ uUSWOM pue uaw jo saiydessolq jo aseyaund -,

ysna) Aieaqi je1oads || 861095 ‘uoyiH

8Sviv'y $ c¢roL

90'clL $ o9g/8 $ (9g°29) $ (9g728) $ = $ zZglov'y $ A3 Aap 33510 s3ujusea asoym spuny snay aa.y3 Jo uQ
jsni] wnasny @ Aueiqi | ab1oag ‘uoyjiH

80'€¥9'Z8L $ 18'G6E'C

"Ysoqyso Jo Aud ays Jo sjooyas
ay3 urperpue [sdew] ‘sainioid ‘syo0q jo aseyaund [pue]-

0S'LLY'L $ LEVS6 $ (95°9.8) $ (95°928) $ - § €8ECLIBL  § nsyoedaisiuawUO pu SISNg ‘Sanjess Jo Uondasa pue aseypind

p—
ISNJ [BLIOWSN UYor ‘syoiH

veerZ'sic ¢ 62°60€'6S

6€'688'€S ¢ o0e'€zr's ¢ (8v°228'2) $ (8t'/28'2) s - $ 509285k ¢ Ar3) Aap 3350 s3uusea asoym spuny 1snay 33.y3 4o auQ
3sniL Aiesqi s Aqqy ‘suiey

00°0EV'Z $ sLizt

40V 3e pun4 Juawanoidw) uoia3||0] 14O Y3 JO puny-gng
. UISUOISIAN pUe *S*n 3y3 ul soitjod g
£6'8/ $ z8zy $ (s6'8p) $ (s6'8p) $ - $ 0z'/8€'C $ Juawanow aAlssasdoud ayy 03 Sunejas syooq,
snil ‘H Jnyuy .U_m;:w:._mv

€L'V16'S $ L2042

L0°LLY $ - $ - $ & $ = $ 99'/ev's $ W /Aseaqn 211gng ysosyyso yo A ayy o1,
isnu] Kieaqi Awy ‘saineq

Z6'PE6'09 $ pl'sey'ee

60°LLY'EC $ sos8 $ (so'8) $ (so'8) $ - $ €8°/216'/¢ $ Ar3) Ay 135440 s3uluIRD BSOYM SPUNY 1SNJY B3IYY 4O BUQ
Jsni] Japueaq ‘ajeoyd

gL'9sz'zz  $ ovLzL'L

40V0 18 pun4 ASojouya | 1d0 3Y3 Jo puny-qng
9z'62. $ vLz6e $ (evvL) $ (rzvvL) $ - $ 20'6.2'L2 $ uawdinba A Jo aseyaund pue sdueualujey

ISnIL AV

06°929'L $ 9618

40VO0 e puny u:me>c,_nE_ u01323]10) 1d0 3yl JO punj-qng
8Z'€S $ 8982 $ (9s°01) $ (95°0L) $ - $ 05°G5S'L $ "Ynos Suidueyd ay3 uo syoog
ledowsaly bujwalg elapy “ayoaly

aouejeg sbujuies |ejo) S8SS07/SuleD awodu| paule] SMO|4 JaN S|EMBIPYJAA  SUOINQLIUOD aouejeg SUOI}OLIISaY R pund jo aweN
pung 9loz 9102 9102 9l02 9oz 9loz pung
Buipug Bujuuibag
9Loz/iereL 9102/L/L

1 28eq

Atewwing Ayanoy Junoday pung isni 1do 9102 L10z/61/S



5/19/2017 2016 OPL Trust Fund Allocations and Expenditures Page 1

2016
2016 Allocations 2016 2016
Allocations Expended / Allocation Allocation
Name of Fund & Restrictions Encumbered Surplus / Deficit Purpose

Archer, Adelia Fleming Memorial .
Books on the changing south. $ 50.00 $ - $ 50.00 Books on the changing South

Sub-fund of the OPL Collection Improvement Fund at OACF

AV Trust
Maintenance and purchase of AV equipment. $ - $ - $
Sub-fund of the OPL Technology Fund at OACF

Choate, Leander Trust
One of three trust funds whose earnings offset city levy $ 2,200.00 $ 8.05 § 2,191.95 Levy relief

Davies, Amy Library Trust
"...to the City of Oshkosh Public Library." $ - $ - $ 2

Gruenwald, Arthur H. Trust
"...books relating to the progressive movement $ 100.00 $ 4270 $ 57.30 Books on progressivism

in politics in the U.S. and Wisconsin."
Sub-fund of the OPL Collection Improvement Fund at OACF

Harris, Abby S. Library Trust
One of three trust funds whose earnings offset city levy $ 4,500.00 $§ 282748 §$ 1,672.52 Levy relief

Hicks, John Memorial Trust
Oshkosh School Library

"...purchase and erection of statues, busts and monuments...repair of suc $ 905.76 $ 876.56 $ 29.20 Materials
..[and] purchase of books, pictures, [maps] and...art...in the $ 10,000.00 $ - $ 10,000.00 Hiker Monument
schools of the City of Oshkosh.

Hilton, George | Library & Museum Trust
One of three trust funds whose earnings offset city levy $ 300.00 $ 57.36 $ 242.64 Levy relief

Hilton, George Il Special Library Trust
"...purchase of biographies of men and women." $ 600.00 $ 80.08 $ 519.92 Biographies

Sub-fund of the OPL Collection Improvement Fund at OACF

Hoxtel, Herman L. Library Memorial Trust
"...educational tape cassette service..." $ 600.00 $ 105.32 § 494.68 Audiobooks

Sub-fund of the OPL Collection Improvement Fund at OACF

Jackson, Gertrude Memorial
Children's materials $ - $ -
Sub-fund of the OPL Collection Improvement Fund at OACF

Kelsh, Eileen D. & William E. Library Memorial Trust
Books on the New Yorker, automobiles, home repair or personal finance $ 100.00 $ 6549 $ 34.51 Books
Sub-fund of the OPL Collection Improvement Fund at OACF

Kenny, Genevieve B. Trust
"...purchase of circulating books on tape, and biographies." $ 400.00 $ - $ 400.00 Audiobooks or Biographies

Sub-fund of the OPL Collection Improvement Fund at OACF

Malnar, Mary Children's Program Trust
To support Children's Programming at OPL $ - $ - $ -
Sub-fund of the OPL Programming Fund at OACF

Nichols, John V. Digital Library Trust
"...collect, store and make available digital information, $ - $ - $
especially as it pertains to the community of Oshkosh..."
Sub-fund of the OPL Technology Fund at OACF

Oshkosh Public Library Memorial Fund $ 11,000.00 $ 8,148.35 $ 2,851.65 Library materials replacement

Part of OPL Memorial Trust
Fund used to hold revenues paid for lost items, donations and memorial

gifts. $ 10,000.00 $ 5689.01 $ 4,310.99 Donations, memorials and grants
$ 10,000.00 $ 11,058.00 $ (1,058.00) OACF grant for landscaping
Children's Literacy Initiatives
$ 300.00 $ 73.72 3 226.28 (Spaulding)
$ 935.00 $ 827.06 $ 107.94 Book club collection (Herzing)
$ 453523 $ 4,53523 $ - Lakefly Writer's Conference
1.0

17V



5/19/2017

2016 OPL Trust Fund Allocations and Expenditures

Page 2

2016 Allocations 2016 2016
Allocations Expended / Allocation Allocation
Name of Fund & Restrictions Encumbered Surplus / Deficit Purpose
Oshkosh Public Library Collection Improvement Fund
Part of OACF Trust Funds for Library Excellence 10,000.00 $ 4,51852 § 5,481.48 Classics
5,000.00 $ 1,45535 $ 3,544.65 Replacements
Oshkosh Public Library Development & Support Fund
Part of OACF Trust Funds for Library Excellence 2,500.00 $ - $ 2,500.00 Plan Support - 1st Graders
$ 1,000.00 $ - $ 1,000.00 WLA Legislative Initiatives
1,500.00 $ - $ 1,500.00 Leadership Oshkosh
Oshkosh Public Library Facility Improvement Fund
Part of OACF Trust Funds for Library Excellence 625.00 $ - $ 625.00 Signage - Children's
$ 5500.00 $ 4,367.89 $ 1,132.11  Furniture
15,000.00 $ 13,810.00 $ 1,190.00 Landscaping
Oshkosh Public Library Programming Fund
Part of OACF Trust Funds for Library Excellence $ 1,100.00 $ 332.01 $ 767.99 WAPL Reception Program
3,000.00 $ 3,042.24 $ (42.24) Lakefly Writer's Conference
Oshkosh Public Library Technology Fund
Part of OACF Trust Funds for Library Excellence $ 400.00 $ 467.84 $ (67.84) iPad Air for Children's
$ 460.00 $ 211.03 § 248.97 Chromebox for Reference
$ 120.00 $ 97.90 $ 22,10 Makey Makeys for Children's
Rasmussen, Mabel E. Library Trust
"...to be used for genealogy books and materials." 500.00 $ 505.94 $ (5.94) Genealogy materials
Rojahn, Frank & Anna Trust
"...purchase of circulating books on tape, circulating books or reference materials." $ -
Schuster, Helen Fund
Purchase of large print and audio books 9,000.00 $ 7,35764 $ 1,642.36 Large print books; Audiobooks
Part of OPL Memorial Trust
Sub-fund of the OPL Collection Improvement Fund at OACF
Stanhilber, Julia L. Library & Parks Trust
"...used by the City in the support and maintenance of the public library... $ $ - $ -
1/2 to the Library, 1/2 to the parks." $ - $ -
Steiger, William A. Memorial
Children's materials 300.00 $ - $ 300.00 Children's Materials
Sub-fund of the OPL Collection Improvement Fund at OACF
Zellmer, Marguerite E.
"...for the sole use of its public library for the purchase of books..." $ - $ - Books
Zellmer, Steven J.
"...to be used for genealogy materials for German Speaking peoples.' 3,500.00 $ 960.41 $ 2,539.59 German Genealogy
Sub-fund of the OPL Collection Improvement Fund at OACF
TOTALS 111,495.76 $ 66,98595 § 44,509.81

171



WISCONSIN
HISTORICAL
SOCIETY

April 24,2017

Oshkosh Public Library

c/o Director Jeff Gilderson-Duew
106 Washington Avenue
Oshkosh, WI 54901

Dear Mr. Gilderson-Duew:

We are pleased to announce that the property you own in the Washington Avenue
Neoclassical District bounded by the 100 and 200 blocks of Washington Avenue in
Oshkosh, Winnebago County, Wisconsin was listed in the National Register and State
Register of Historic Places by the Secretary of the Interior on April 10, 2017.

Properties listed in the National Register and State Register receive the protections and
benefits of this program. For more information see our website at www.wisconsinlistory.org.
They are protected from encroachment by federally licensed or assisted projects. Moreover,
they are eligible for federal matching grants for restoration, when funds are available.

If you have any questions about the National Register and State Register program in
Wisconsin, please call or write to Peggy Veregin, National Register Coordinator at the State

Historic Preservation Office, 608/264-6501.

Sincerely, . . e —_—

Daina Penkiunas -
Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer

172

Collecting, Preserving and Sharing Stories Since 1846

816 State Street Madison, Wisconsin 53706

wisconsinhistory.org



